Democratic Services Section
Chief Executive’s Department
Belfast City Council

City Hall

Document Pack

Belfast
BT1 5GS

4™ October, 2011

MEETING OF STRATEGIC POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,

The above-named Committee will meet in the Lavery Room (Room G05), City Hall on
Friday, 7th October, 2011 at 10.00 am, for the transaction of the business noted below.

You are requested to attend.

Yours faithfully,

PETER McNANEY

Chief Executive

AGENDA:

1.

Routine Matters

(a) Apologies
(b) Minutes

Corporate Plan and Performance Management

(a) Future Work Plan (Pages 1 - 6)

Modernisation and Improvement

(a) Improvement, Collaboration and Efficiency Programme - Update (Pages 7 -
46)

Democratic Services and Governance

(a) Appointments to Belfast Education and Library Board (Pages 47 - 48)



-2.
5.  Finance

(a) Tender for the Provision of a Banking Service (Pages 49 - 50)

6. Human Resources

(a) Standing Order 55 - Employment of Relatives (Pages 51 - 52)

To: The Chairman and Members of the Strategic Policy and Resources Committee



Page 1 Agenda ltem 2a

Belfast City Council

Report to: Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Subject: Future work plan
Date: Friday, 7 October, 2011

Reporting Officer: Stephen McCrory, Democratic Services Manager
Contact Officer: Gareth Quinn, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1 Relevant Background Information

1.1 | Members will recall that the Committee, at its meeting on 17 June, considered
that the review of the current Corporate Plan and the development of priorities
and projects for the new Corporate Plan should commence in
August/September through a series of party briefings and facilitated workshops
for Members. The timetable for the development of the new Plan would then
become aligned with the timetable for the development of the Council’s medium-
term financial plan and the setting of the rate for 2012/13.

1.2 | The purpose of the Workshops would be to seek agreement on what Members
wished to achieve by the end of the Council term and to consider how this could
be delivered in the context of available resources. Among the issues which
Members would consider during the next three months would be:

e Ambition — what the Council would deliver across the City in terms of
both projects and programmes;

e Advocacy — where and how to influence on behalf of the City;
o Affordability — what was achievable and realistic;

e Delivery — understanding what it took to get things from concept to
delivery and making sure things happened; and

e Governance - ensuring effective decision-making and clarifying the roles
of Members and officers in achieving the priorities.

1.3 | The first workshop, held on 17 August, incorporated two sessions:

1. ‘Place-shaping’ and potentially “game-changing” projects that Members
wanted to see delivered in Belfast on a NSEW and City Centre basis.

2. Consideration of the Council’'s Corporate Themes — leadership,
economy, environment, people and communities and improving services.




Page 2

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Subsequently, on 23 September, the Committee considered a report which
outlined the direction given by Members at the workshop to inform the
development of the Corporate Plan 2012-15 and an ‘investment package’ which
would communicate the Council’'s Commitment to tackling the effects of the
economic downturn in the city.

The second workshop, held on 28 September, aimed to foster an understanding
of ‘city competitiveness’ and incorporated a presentation by Neil Gibson of
Oxford Economics who outlined the challenges and opportunities facing Belfast
and proposed what the Council may consider in supporting the economic growth
of the city. The findings of the workshop will be used to inform the second
iteration of the ‘Belfast Investment Package 2011’ Document.

Furthermore, area based working sessions have been scheduled to take place
over the coming weeks in advance of the next meeting of the Budget and
Transformation Panel. These sessions, will aim to build upon discussions
among Members at the recent Place-Shaping workshop. The briefing sessions
will enable Members to further discuss and refine the projects and priorities
previously identified.

Members will be aware that there are quite a few meetings, workshops and
other sessions being arranged in order to complete a draft Corporate Plan as
well as informing the striking of the rate. A work plan is enclosed as Appendix 1
which aims to outline upcoming issues and when they will be considered.

Key Issues

2.2

Through the workshops Members have stressed the need to create a long-
term vision for Belfast and have identified the key elements which should be
considered under the Council Corporate Themes of ‘Economy’, ‘Environment’,
‘People and Communities’ and ‘Improve our Services’. Under the Corporate
Theme of ‘Leadership’ Members agreed to review the Council’s governance
and decision making structures in order to ensure that the Council was fit for
purpose and could deliver on its Corporate Plan.

Governance Arrangements

A vital element in the overall success of the Council’'s new vision for the City is
our governance arrangements, that is the way in which we take decisions,
are fit for purpose. The Council, through the Corporate Planning process, has
emphasised that, in order to maximise the effect we can have, it is crucial that
we have a positive and coherent relationship with the Northern Ireland Executive
and other key partners in the City to ensure that the Council is aligned to the
Programme for Government and makes maximum use of potential external
sources of funding. Members have stressed the importance of the Council
developing effective external relations and international relations strategies
so that the Council’s influence on all issues affecting quality of life can be
managed effectively. Governance arrangements therefore must also have
an externally focused dimension to enable effective partnership working
with statutory agencies to deliver on the priorities for the City. Another
important element of the governance arrangements, as agreed by Committee at
its last meeting, will be to ensure that Party Leaders have the support they
need to work effectively across parties in order to ensure that all strategic
issues are taken forward effectively.




Page 3

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

Council Constitution

Members are due to consider certain elements of the Council’'s Governance
arrangements over the next number of months. The culmination of these
deliberations will be the establishment of a Council Constitution which will set
out how we take decisions, deal with the scheme of delegation, the equality
scheme, the financial regulations, codes of behaviour and the Standing Orders.
The Constitution will be a key governance document which covers ‘who we
are’, ‘what we do’, ‘how we do it’ and ‘Our values. It will be a ‘living’ document
and once updated it will be reviewed, along with its supporting documents and
policies, on a regular basis to ensure they remain up to date. The Party
Leaders, Party Groups and Committee will be consulted over the next few
months before the new Constitution is finally submitted for the Committee’s
consideration.

Council Representation

The matter of Council representation on outside bodies and the issue of
declarations of interest will be dealt with by way of two separate but
complementary reports. The first will seek to establish a ‘Register of
Members’ Interests’ which will be compiled following consultation with each
Member and which will be maintained and updated on a regular basis and will
give advice on the declaration of private pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests
at Council and Committee meetings. The second report will deal with the roles
and responsibilities of Members who sit on outside bodies and will give
advice on how declarations of interest which might arise through that
membership should be handled. Both reports will focus on ensuring that
Members are protected from any claims that relevant interests were not
declared.

Decision Making Structures

With regard to the overall decision making structures in the Council, Members
will be aware that the current Committee structure broadly reflects the
Departmental structure with each Committee seeking to deliver on the priorities
set out in the individual Departmental Plans. The Council has agreed through
the recent Corporate Plan Workshops that it wishes to become more outward
facing whilst maintaining a focus on delivering locally. Although the
intention of the current Committee structure is to deliver on the key priorities in
the Corporate Plan, it would be useful if the Committee could give consideration
to whether this model of governance is the most appropriate for the new Council
vision. One example could be to consider aligning the Committees with the
priorities identified in the Corporate Plan.

It must be stressed that this model is not being proposed to the Committee as
the way forward. It is only for the purpose of opening up a discussion on how
we wish to align our decision making structures with the new and more outward
facing Council vision. Members’ views at this early stage of discussion would be
most helpful and there will be a number of subsequent discussions at
Committee and through Workshops and Briefings before any changes would
be proposed to the Committee

Party Leaders will meet with an external facilitator in the coming weeks to
identify how best they can be supported, both individually and as a group, in
helping to take forward strategic issues effectively. The intention is to produce a
protocol which will ensure that the necessary mechanisms are in place to fully
support the work of the Party Leaders.




Page 4

Resource Implications

3.1 | N/A

Equality Implications

41 | N/A

Recommendations

5.1 | It is recommended that the Committee notes the foregoing report and provides
direction in respect of any further work to be undertaken when reviewing the
Council’'s governance and decision making structures.

6 Decision Tracking

Officers responsible:
Gareth Quinn, Senior Democratic Services Officer
November 2011

7 Key to Abbreviations

N/A

8 Documents attached

Appendix 1 — Committee Work plan : October to December




Page 5
Timetable of Engagement with Members

October — December 2011

SP&R 7 Oct Future Workplan

Party Leaders Meeting 12 Oct

NSEW Briefing Sessions 10-17 Oct Briefing sessions on area basis
(NSEW/ Shankill)

Budget & Transformation Panel 18 Oct

SP&R 21 Oct Report on Economy Workshop to Committee

Rate Setting report to SP&R

SP&R Corporate Plan development update

Update - projects arising from NSEW/Shankill/City
Centre

People & Communities Workshop TBA Nov Member Workshop on People and
Communities

Budget & Transformation Panel 9 Nov Review revenue estimates
Party Leaders and Parties TBA Nov Discuss draft narrative, actions and targets
SP&R 18 Nov 2011/12 Quarter 2 Budget Report

Further Update on 2012/13 revenue estimates
(includina Canpital Financina Strateav. Prudential

Budget & Transformation Panel TBA Dec Review budget position

Party Leaders and Parties TBA Dec Review Corporate Plan key messages
Discuss plans for Conference

SP&R 9 Dec Final iterations of draft Corporate Plan and budgets
Agree draft plan for consultation and engagement in
Jan

January — March 2012 (Summary of tasks)

Report recommending District Rate for 2012/13
Consultation and key messages launch
Budgets agreed

Standing Committee estimates and recommended district rate for 2012/13

Rate Struck

Corporate Plan finalised on basis of feedback

Launch and Implement



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3a

Belfast City Council

Report to: Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Subject: Improvement, Collaboration and Efficiency Programme - Update
Date: 7 October 2011

Reporting Officer: Ciaran Quigley, Assistant Chief Executive
Gerry Millar, Director of Property and Projects
Contact Officer: Kevin Heaney (Ext. 6202)

1.0 Relevant Background Information

1.1 Members are advised that during the past year local government have been working together to
development a sector led ‘Improvement, Collaboration and Efficiency (ICE) programme. The ICE
programme seeks to identify potential collaborative opportunities to support service improvement
and secure greater efficiencies within councils. As previously agreed by Committee, Council officers
have been engaged in these discussions to explore the potential opportunities for the Council as part
of its wider efficiency programme which has already recognised collaboration as one approach.

1.2 Although initially developed as a counter argument to the proposed establishment of a centralised
Business Services Organisation to deliver a range of new functions which had been proposed to
transfer to Local Government, the ICE programme seeks to reflect the vacuum created by the
suspension of the RPA in June 2010, and the increasingly challenging financial environment facing
councils. The stated aim of the programme is to reduce the financial burden on ratepayers and to
make the Sector more efficient through identifying, sharing and implementing opportunities for
improvement and efficiency via collaboration.

2.0 Key Issues

2.1 The exploratory work in relation to ICE cumulated in the release, in February 2011, of a ‘Case for
Change’ document which sought to engage the sector in discussions on potential improvement
opportunities. An Executive Summary of the ICE document is attached at Appendix 1, with copies of
the full report (266 pages) previously circulated to Members. The Council submitted a detailed
response to this consultation document indicating its support for the principles which underpin the
ICE programme and confirming its continued involvement insofar as there may be potential tangible
benefits for the Council in doing so.

2.2  InJuly 2011, a consultation findings report was issued to all councils for information summarising the
feedback received on the ICE Case for Change report (copy attached at Appendix 2), and setting
out recommendations for moving the ICE programme forward including the establishment of a
Regional Governance Group, a political forum, which would identify, consider and make
recommendations to councils on potential collaborative opportunities.

2.3  Subsequently, the Chief Executive has recently received joint correspondence, dated 19 September,
from the President of NILGA and Chair of SOLACE (attached at Appendix 3) setting out proposals
for the establishment of such a Regional Governance Group including its proposed role, political
membership, secretarial support, resource requirements and operating principles.

2.4  Inreviewing the proposals put forward, Members are asked to consider the following key issues:-

i) Membership of Regional Governance Group (RGG) — it is proposed that each Council is
asked to nominate one political representative, and a substitute member, onto the RGG. If the
Council was to consider that it should participate on the RGG it is proposed that the Chair of the
Strategic Policy and Resources Committee be nominated to represent the Council, with the
Deputy Chair as the substitute nomination.

ii) Resource Implications — The report indicates that the only costs to be met by councils as a
result of their participation on the RGG will be those relating to expenses incurred (e.g. travel to
meetings) by the RGG nominated Member and the potential costs associated with hosting
meetings (which are proposed to be rotated across member councils). The report further states
that councils will be consulted upon any potential additional costs which may be incurred by
participating councils and such costs will be estimated in advance by a business case.



Page 8

2.5  Whilst there clearly remains uncertainty around the scope of potential opportunity for the Council as
part of the ICE Programme, the current financial pressures facing the local government and wider
public sector will undoubtedly act as a compelling driver for encouraging greater collaboration where
real benefits, greater value for money and efficiencies can be demonstrated at no detriment to
councils.

3.0 Resource Implications

There will clearly be staffing implications attached to the Council’s continued participation in the ICE
programme, albeit the level of resources has yet to be quantified.

There will also be financial costs attached to payment of Members expenses for participation on the RGG
and hosting meetings as required.

4.0 Recommendations

Members are asked to:

i) consider the proposals for the establishment of a Regional Governance Group (as set out in paragraph
2.4 above and the correspondence attached at Appendix 3; and

ii) agree that the Chair of the Council's Strategic Policy and Resources Committee will be the nomination
onto the Regional Governance Group, with the Deputy Chair nominated as substitute.

5.0 Appendices

Appendix 1 Executive Summary of ICE Case for Change report
Appendix 2 ICE Case for Change consultation findings report
Appendix 3 Correspondence received regarding the establishment of the RGG



Improvement, Collaboration &
Etficiency IC&’

LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ICE PROGRAMME

The ‘Case for Change’
- Consultation Paper

@ 4‘ solace




Page 10

‘CASE FOR CHANGE’ EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.

1.1

12

13

14

2.1

2.2

2.3

BACKGROUND

The ICE Programme has been designed and led by local government, through NILGA and
SOLACE, as a voluntary initiative to support the sector as it strives to deliver on citizen
expectations of continually improving, value for money services, in an increasingly challenging
economic climate.

The Improvement, Collaboration & Efficiency (ICE) Programme was originally conceived by the
sector as a response to government proposals for the creation of a Business Services
Organisation (BSO). This was unanimously and robustly rejected by the sector, primarily on
the basis that it removed decision making from local councils and would be damaging to the
vision of ‘strong, effective local government’.

In June 2010 the Northern Ireland Executive took a decision that the Review of Public
Administration (RPA) would not proceed to the planned May 2011 timetable and, instead,
elections to the existing 26 councils would take place in May 2011. Since then, the ICE
Programme has taken on greater significance in terms of delivering citizen focused
transformation and change.

Local government has grasped the opportunity to lead and progress reform based on an
approach which is complementary to the objectives of the RPA agenda yet can be progressed
independently. Both programmes can be aligned once the new RPA timeframe has been
agreed.

PURPOSE OF ‘CASE FOR CHANGE’ REPORT

This ‘Case for Change’ report endeavours to engage the sector in a discussion on the potential
improvement opportunities. A range of illustrative estimated long term benefits, both
quantitative and qualitative, has been set out in the report. These demonstrate that the ICE
Programme presents an opportunity for the local government sector to make significant
improvements in both the quality and efficiency of delivery of services. In some cases, it
should be noted that indicative outcomes have been heavily caveated due to recognised
limitations in the available data and a key recommendation from this report is the
development of an appropriate baseline and initial key performance indicators to support
future performance improvement.

Following consultation and endorsement by the sector, the prioritised improvement
opportunities identified will be subject to more detailed evaluation and comparison through
development of robust business cases progressed through the longer term ICE Programme.

The extent to which the estimated improvement potential can be achieved will be dependent
on a number of factors including the availability of funding, resources and capacity but, of



3.1

3.2

4.1

Page 11

primary importance will be the level of engagement across the sector and the commitment of
strong professional and political leadership.

ICE PROPOSALS

Based on recognised good practice and corporate and business planning processes already in
operation in many councils, an ICE Framework has been developed which will support
continuous improvement at a local level and collaborative improvement initiatives at both
sub-regional and regional levels. Some of the key strengths of the ICE Framework are that it
recognises, firstly, that councils will have different starting positions on the improvement
journey and, secondly, the importance of upholding local accountability and local decision
making so that programmes can be tailored to local needs and circumstances.

The opportunity areas analysed for the purposes of this Case for Change relate to the
following business and service areas:

> Customer Facing Services - covering approximately 70% of front line services, ie,
leisure, parks and recreation, waste collection, waste disposal, environmental health
and building control

» Support Services - focused on finance, legal, insurance and asset management

> Human Resources - focused on occupational health services; recruitment issues;
capacity building/e-learning; HR systems; delivery models; performance approaches and
systems; and pay and grading systems

> Procurement - focused on improvement and collaborative opportunities across a
baseline of approximately 50% of total procurement spend

» Information and Communication Technology (ICT) — identifing the creation of a
common network platform as a critical enabler for the transfer of functions and
collaborative improvement opportunities across all business and service areas. In
relation to ICT, such opportunities include shared data centres, shared internet
connectivity, shared email and web protection/filtering, shared processing systems eg
finance, payroll, HR, and moving to a centralised tiered IT support model.

POTENTIAL BENEFITS

The “‘Case for Change’ report has identified a wide range of improvement benefits flowing
from the ICE Programme opportunities, including:

° Improved customer satisfaction due to better targeted services and facilities
° Improved ratepayer satisfaction due to increased value for money

° Improved career enhancement opportunities, staff skilling and staff morale
® Improved performance management



4.2

5:1

52

Page 12

° Improved partnership relationships and greater sharing of knowledge across local
government and other sectors
° Increased potential to improve and standardise service provision and to promote new

service delivery models.

In terms of quantitative benefits, it is estimated that the ICE Programme will deliver efficiency
net present value (NPV) savings (discount rate of 3.5%) in the range of £257m to £570m over a
25 year period. These represent savings in the range of 2.85% - 6.33% against the baseline
cost of £9 billion for the delivery of local government services over a 25 year period. As
already stated, the extent to which the ICE Programme delivers along this scale of efficiency
savings is dependent on a number of factors including the availability of funding, resources
and capacity but, primarily, on the level of engagement across the sector together with the
commitment of strong political and managerial leadership.

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Above all the ICE Programme presents the local government sector with the opportunity to
lead its own change and transformation programme and to work together, with other
stakeholders, to put in place the enablers and arrangements to support this process.

Key recommendations at this stage are:-

° Each council has the opportunity to consider and comment upon the ‘Case for
Change’ report through the consultation process

° The ICE governance arrangements should be established as soon as possible

o The Regional Governance Group once established considers and agrees the initial ICE
Work Programme for implementation and a detailed programme plan is developed

° Consideration is given by the sector, in liaison with DOE, to the resource and funding
requirements to support the identified work programme at both central and local
levels, including potential to account for redundancy costs through capital
arrangements. This may entail support from central government and/or participating
councils

° Building on the work of Policy Development Panel B, the sector enters into a process,
in liaison with the Local Government Auditor and other stakeholders, to develop
consistent, robust baseline data across business and service areas and agrees a limited
number of key performance indicators for the purposes of performance measurement
and continuous improvement.

“Change will not come if we wait for some other person or some other time. We are
the ones we’ve been waiting for. We are the change that we seek” (Barack Obama)



Improvement, Collaboration & IC
Efficiency s

IMPROVEMENT COLLABORATION AND EFFICIENCY (ICE) PROGRAMME
CONSULTATION

Dear Consultee,

As President of the Local Government Association (NILGA) and Chair of SOLACE we are
pieased to enclose a copy of the Improvement, Collaboration and Efficiency (ICE) Final
Report. This details the principal areas of feedback received on the recent ICE ‘Case for
Change' and Regicnal Governance Cansultation together with recommendations on next
sleps

The aim of the ICE programme consuliation was {o engage the sector in a discussion on
potential improvemeant opportunities, prompting further thinking and debate. There was an
excellent response rate to the consultation and we would like o thank all those who submitied

comments and suggastions

The final repori recognises that the ICE consultation s only the first step along the road of a
longer term improvemant journey. There is now a need to build on the momentum generated
by the consullation and progress to the next phase in the programme. Work is progressing on
finalising an implementation plan o deliver the quick wins identified in the consultation; indeed
joint recruitment advertising has already been implemented and we are currently considering
joint procurement opportunibes.

In the coming weeks consideration will be given to the relationship between the ICE
programme and wider local government reform programme, should the ocutstanding issues in
respect to RPA be resolved by the NI Executive. You will note frem the recommendations in
Section 8 of the report that NILGA and SOLACE will soon be meeting with the Minister of the
Environment. Mr Alex Attwood MLA to hear his opinion on proposals for the Local
Govemment Reform Programme. This will be of enormous bensfit as we move forward. We
will, of course, keep you nformed of the outcome of that meeting and continue to provide
updates on future developmenis within the ICE programme.

I the meantime, we commend this report and believe that through strong, dynamic leadership
in collaboration, we can make real progress for the benefit of our customers. citizens and
ratepayers.

Yours sincarely

X

Clir Evelyne L Robinson Ashley Boreland
President Chair of SOLACE
July 2011

Local Bovernment - moving forward, together




Page 14



Improvement, Collaboration & (
Etliciency

Improvement, Collaboration and
Efficiency (ICE) Consultation
Final Report

July 2011




Page 16

Introduction and Background

1. Purpossa

1.7

This Report provides an analysis of the feedback recelved on the Improvement, Collaboration
and Efficiency (ICE) '‘Case for Change' and Governance consultation. It also provides clear
recommendations for the next steps to implement the ICE Programme.

2, Background

2.7,

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

The ICE Pregramme |s an inttiative designed and led by local government, thraugh the
Northem Ireland Local Government Association (MILGA) and Sociely of Local Authority Chief
Executives (SOLACE), to support local councils &8s they strive to continue to deliver high
guality, efficsent services in an increasingly challenging economic environmant. |1s.aim s to
itentily, share and implemant apportunities for improvement, collaboration and efficiency
across local government, crealing opportunities for councils to engage In a vanaty of
initiatives to deliver services in new and innovative ways on a local, sub-regional and regional
basis. It Is also an opportunity to define existing coflaboration betweaen councils which
predated the ICE Programme e.g. through Waste Management Groups, rural Development
and EU Co-Operation Programmes, and offers a way 1o axtend contempaonse, and quantify
the practices of the sectar which have already generated significant returns to local councils.

On 25th Jan 2071, two separala, but interrelated reporis were issued for consultation.
Consullees included councils, political parties and a limited number of interested groups such
as the Waste Management Groups, Unions and Local Government Professional groups.

The first repan issued for consultation was entitied ‘ICE Programme: The Case for Change .
This report endsavoured to engage the sector in a discussion on potential improvemeant and
coliaboration opportunities. It outlined the scope of potential across key areas of the sector
and, in conjunction with the |CE governance proposals, presented a pathway o detiver
impravarments in service delivery and better value for maney for ratepayers.

The second report, entitted 'Operational arrangements for the Regional Governance Group
and options for officer support’ set oul drafl guidelines on how a Regional Govemance Group
(RGG) would work and included options on praviding the resources to support the RGG

The main aim of the ICE consultation was to engage the twenty-six councils in 8 discussion
an polential iImprovement and collaboration opportunities and to assess the future direchon of

the ICE Programme.

2.6, Councils were asked to consider both reports and provide their views on a range of key

questions. The closing date for receipt of comments on the papers was & March 2011,
however, whemne an extension to the consultation period was required this was accommodated
in the interests of ensuring consultees had sufficient time to make an infarmed response.

3. Response Rate

% I

Twenty-five out of 26 councils replied to the consultation. The Department of the
Environment (Dok), MIPSA, Local Government Staff Commissian, Armagh, Banbridge and
Craigavon Voluntary Transition Committee and the Group Chief Building Control Officers’
Farum also submitied responsas,

Page2of 23



Page 17

3.2. Minetean councits submitted direct responses to the ICE Programme consultation questions,

while a further 6 submitted lettars.

3.3. One council indicated that it did not intend to respand 1o the consultation at this time, while

another indicated i would revisit the proposals whan further clanfication and information s
available

Summary of Council Responses

4.1

4.2

.

The following surnmary information is based on direct responses recelved from councils 1o
the consultation questions. A detailed breakdown of responses to each question is attached
at Appendix 4

ICE Framoework

4. 21 Councils were askad a seres of questions regarding the ICE Framewark as ot out in
the 'Case for Change’ consultation report.

4.2 2 Al councils {100% - 19/19) who submitted direct responsas o the consultation
guestions supported the general principles of the ICE Framework as an appropnate
mechanism to aid and support improvement, collaboration and efficiency. One council
suggested consideration is also glven to the development of a broader model
addressing mtegration and alignment of planning at sectoral and cross-sectoral levels.

4.2 3. The majority of councils (85% - 18/18) indicaled that they would be prepared in
principle. to incorporate the ICE Framework (or key elements of i) within their
Corporate and Business Planning cycle: The remaining council, while welcoming the
principles of improvement end coliaboration, falt it was too early in the pracess o agree
to this.

Baseline Data and KPIl's

4.3.1. Councils were asked to consider if the local govemment sector should develop a
baseline data sa! and appropriate key perfformance indicalors that could be used 1o
assist co-operation and collaboration in terms of identifying and supporting good
practice.

4.3.2 All councils {100% - 17117 who submitted a direc! response to the consultation
question agreed that a baseline data set and appropriate performance indicators
should be developed by the sector. Several highlighted that the absence of @ mbust
baseline data set had hindered the progress of collaborative inifiatives and joined up
approaches to service delivery. Others highlighted that the development of this was
essential lo the success of any sector wide improvement programme,

4 3.3 Councils noted that performance indicators should b limited to & ‘core set’ of robust,
high level Indicators which are consistently measured, reported and audited. It was
also noted that as part of the process to develop a centrallocal government parinership
approach. consideration should also be given to the introduchion of imited agreed KP1's
for central government deparments.

Page 30f 23



4.4

4.5

48

4.7

Page 18

ICE Work Programme

4 4.1 Councils were asked for their views on the proposed ICE Work Programmae set out in
tha ‘Case for Change' consultation report.

4 4.2 As a starting point, the propesed ICE work programme was broadly supponted. One
council felt it was too early in the process to agree until mare independent evidenca s
produced on the veracity of ndicative savings

Invest to Save Business Model

4 5.1 Councils were asked if they agreed with the principles of the ‘Invest to Save’ Business
Model as oullined within the “Caze for Change’ consuliation repont

4.6 2 All councils {100% - 18/19) who submitted a direct response to the consultation
guestion agreed with the principles of the ‘Invest to Save’ Businass modal, with the
majority (88%) reilerating thal the ulllisatien of efficiencies should be a matter for
individua! councils. One council indicated that it would be impartant to recognise and
reconcile the tensions that exist between use of efficencies to fund local prorities and
the funding of local government refarm

Funding Reform

4.6 1, Councils were asked under what circumstancas would their council be prepared to
agree to use efficiency savings to deliver aspects of the reform programme.

4.6.2 Cut of the 18 councils who submitted a direct response to the consuliation queston,
47% (9 councils) indicated that while the ICE programme itself is a parl of reform, it
would not be appropriate to use efficiencies deliverad through the ICE pragramme to
fund central govemment proposed RPA initiatives. Several of these highlighted that if
there were any indications that the benefits of the ICE programme would be usad to
fund the reform process rather than being used at a local lavel, that this would lead te a
lack of support, adversely effecting the commitment and paricipation of coungils.

4 8.3 A further 32% (6 councils) reiterated their support for the principles agreed by Local
Government in February 2010, while ene cullined a sel of their own high leve!
principies which it proposed should be applied to funding reform (see Appandix B).

Participation in Regional Governance Group (RGG)

4,71 Councils were asked if they would give a commitment to nomingte a representative to &
regional governance group. All councils (100% - 17/17) who submitted a response to
the consultation gquestion Indicated that they would be prepared in principle, to consider
nominating a repressniaiive.

4.7 2. \While accepting in principle the establishment of the RGG and the associated
operational principles, it was noted that it should not diminish the role of NILGA and
SOLACE. In addition, a number of councils asked for further clarification on how the
RGG will be resourced, the costs attached to its establishment and operation. how
these will be apportioned and its operational armangements.

Page 4 of 23



Page 19

5. Other Issues Raised by Councils

5 1. In addition to the information presented, a number of other common issues were raised by
councils. These issues were reflecied both within councils responses o the consullastion
guestions and in Individual lefters and additicnal information submitted by councils

8.2

Alignment with Wider Local Government Reform Programme

5.2.1, In thelr response to the consultafion, several councils ratsed the need for further clarity

B.3.

0 e

on how the ICE programme and proposed RGG would be aligned and integrated with
the wider local government reform programme should the outstanding issues in respect
to RPA be resolved by the Ni Executive. It was noted that consideration should be
given 1o alignment and Integration with:

» Future model/structure for local government refarm

s« [DOE's Service Delivery and Performance Improvement proposition

= Future timefines for local governmant reform, and

= Utillizging mechanisms offered by organisallons including SOLACE and NILGA,

Business Case Development
The importance of maving to the next phase to develop detailed and robust business

cases, setting out upfront invastment cost and the potential benefil for participating in
any collaborative projects was noted

5.1.2. Several councils also highlighted the need for more cianty and detall on the upfront

34,

541

5432

Invastment costs attached to the development and implementation of coliaborative
Initiatives across participaling councils as well as the costs attached 1o the
astablishment and operation of the RGG.

Resources

Continued resources o support the |CE Programme were highlighted as a key issue
far most consultees. The ICE programme was developed and supported using
resources previously tasked with progressing transition and transtormation under RPA.
This primarily related to Change Managers and key, dedicated seconded staff within
MILGA, including a small Performance Improvament Team

DOE funding ended for a number of these posts in March 2011 although a degree of
momentum has been sustained through the retention of core elements of the NILGA
Improvemant team and ongoing voluntary Input from a number of Chiel Executives,
SOLACE and other council officers. Sustainability beyond Juna 2011 in the form of a
faundation for further reform and improvement work has been agreed for NILGA with
DOE, however, consideration needs to be given fo the idantification and alignment of
resources to support the ICE Programme particularly in the early stages.

Page 5 of 23



Page 20

6. Other Responses

6.1

The Department of the Envirtonment (DoE), NIPSA, Local Governmeant Staff Commission and
the Group Chief Building Control Officers’ Forum submilled responses to the ICE
consultation. A summary of each of these responses Is attached at Appendix C. While most
of the points raised have bsen addressad in the ICE Programme 'Case for Change' report. all
outstanding iesues will be given careful consideration as the ICE Frogramme progresses

7. Conclusions

74

7.2

T

74

7.5

7.6

The aim of the ICE programme consultation was to engage the sector in 3 discussion on
potential improvement oppartunities, prompling further thinking and debate. There was an
excellent response rate, with the majority of councils indicating their general suppan for the
principies set out in the consultation repons.

For o6 long tha development of the sector has been hinderad by uncertainty, a focus by
many on procasses and structures rather than outputs, and inadequate opportunities and
mechanisms for knowledge sharing. The ICE Programme provides a clear direction, the
oppartunity for strong leadership for the sector as well as good governance and engagement
al a regional level with fiexibility fo drive collaborative improvement projects at regional, su-
ragional and local levels dependent on the most appropriale business model.

There is a nead to build on the momanium generated by the ICE Programme. The responses
acknowledges that the ICE programme can be used to facilitate local government to achieve
significant improvements quickly, demonstrate efficiencies and deliver improved services tor
customers. |ndead joint recruitment advertising has already besn mplemeanted and work is
proceading on joint procurement opporunities.

Councils recognise too that this is only the first step along the road of a longer term
improvemeant jpumaey, that there is now & need to progress to the next phasea in the
programme, to develop robust business cases and deliver quick wins to halp bulld credibility
in the short term and |ay the foundations for the achievement of longer term goals. This must
be achieved without the need for costly (in terms of ime and maney) structures. Council
rasponses have underlined the associated resource implications for the establishmeant of an
RGG by emphasising the requirement to keep costs 1o a minlmum

There is also recognition that further consideration and clarity is required on how the ICE
programme and wider focal government reform programme will be aligned and integrated
should the outstanding Issues In respect to RPA be resolved by the NI Executive. Within this.
if the cantext for the |CE programmea changes, it would be appropnate to consider whether
tha ICE governance arrangemenis and structures require change 1o align with the naw
direction. It will also be important to ensure that the work, which has been progressed to date,
is not lost

Baszed on the consultation respanses, three options have been identifed for moving forward -

s«  Option 1- Do Nothing: the ICE Programme and the eslablishment of an RGG ane
not progressed at this stage
« Option 2 - Immediate consideration should be given 1o alignment of the ICE
Programme and structures with the wider Refarm Programme
= Option 3 — Procead to establish an RGG and Implement ICE programme (with
alignment to the Reform Programme when direction agread)
Page B of 23



o

Tt

T.B.

T.8.1.

782

783

T84

T.8.5.

TA%

Page 21

Option 1 - Do Nothing: the ICE Programme and the establishment of an
RGG are not prograssead at this siage

The excellent respense rate and resulis of the ICE Consultation indicate a level of
suupport for moving forward to the next phase in the development and implementation
of the ICE Programme, Based on the consultation responses received, this would not
be a strongly supporled oplion

Option 2 - Immediate Alignment of ICE Programme and structures to the
wider Reform Agenda.

The immediate resumption of a8 wider reform programme could provide an opportunity
to progress the ICE proposals through the engagemeant and involvermant of the sactor
in influencing the development of a fit for purpose framework to implemeant an
improvement andfor reform programme and deliver strong local govemment, which can
stand as “a partner of equals” with central government. However, consideration will
nead 1o be given to the practicalities associated with alignment as there are some
concems aboul progressing transitton at the same time as a wider transformation
programime

The ICE Programme was originally conceived and developed by the seclor as an
alternative to the PWC Option 5 Transformation with Regional Collaboration’ proposal,
which included the BSO, to demonstrate the potential for increased multi-sector
working, lo deliver comparable improvements and efficiencies

Although reform was subsequently suspended the ICE programme is complementary
to it and could be aligned and assimilated within a wider reform agenda.

With the appointment of a new Environment Minister and the commencement of the
new Assambly and local governmment terms we are presanted with an opportunify for
the sector to take stock of where we are now and fo shape the implemeantation of a
future reform programme by bullding upon the previous reform policy work developed
and agreed by the Sector including the funding principles, referred to in the
consultation responses by a number of counclls. It should also be noled that, in the
context of the earler reform programme, transition arrangements were enly introduced
due to time constraints around the introduction of shadow councils

A key crticism of the previous reform process was that i focussed too much on
structures and process rather than outcomes and there was a lack of clarity and
definition of roles. Alignment provides an opportunity to use past experience while
taking account of current situations to influence the future wider governance
tramework,

The ICE govemnance proposals, as supported in the ICE consuitation responses,
recognise the importance of poliical members leading and driving any
improvement/reform process and the validity of having a regional mechanism to delver
this while at the same time clearly delineating the role and responsibility of senior
officers to deliver outcomes. Alignment of this model within a wider reform programme
will address the identified short comings of the: previous reform process

Page 7 of 23



=4
B

EA

7.9:2

783

794

7.8.5.

Page 22

Option 3 - Establish an RGG and Implement ICE programme (wilh algrmsnt

i the Faform Programms when ditsctzn and implementation pEn agread ).

The results of the ICE Consultation indicate a high level of support and mandate for
maving forward when a governance structure. up front resources and the foundations
far an effective Impravameant framework are in place.

Under this option, a Regional Governance Group could be astablished ralativaly gulckly
and work could continue on finalising the work plan and on the development of robust
business cases,

While this appreach maintains acthority for defivery of collaborative projects within the
remit of local government, consideration will have o be given by the seclor and iis
partners including DOE to the appropriate support arrangarments 1o prograss
collaborative projects at regional, sub-regional and local levels As emphasised in the
consultation responses, consideration is raquired on ansuring costs are keptfo a
minimum, best use is made of scarce resources and the focus remains on outputs
rather than procasses and struclures.

Under this options ICE and the reform programme can be assimilated at a later stage
Discussions are however needed with DCE as to the direction of the reform proposals |
as there is a risk that when the reform programme is re-established that the ICE
Programme will be superseded by the Depariment in favour of a central govemment
initiative such as a statutory BSO or proposals within the Local Government Reform
Bill. The previous Minister and his Deparimental officials have consisiently argued that
ICE should be formulated on the 11 council model — most recently evidencead by their
response to the ICE Case for Change consultation,

Although NILGA has sacured the continuation of funding. pending Ministerial and
NILGA Executive approval of the offer, this is on the basis that the reform programme
rather than exclusively [CE will ba ite focus. Careful and further consideration will have
lo be givan as o how the sector creales further siructures convergent with or wholly
separate from the reform programme referred to above.

B Recommendations

8.1.1

Immediate discussions are soughi with the Minister (o)
8 Cutline the oulcames of the ICE Consullation

* Seek an update on the Department's propasals for the Local Govemnment Reform
Programme

=  Commence a process of engagement batween the Local Government sactor and
the Minister as to the most appropriate options for moving forward with reform and
ICE

Page § of 23



Page 23

Appendix A
Council Responses

The lollowing analysis is based on the submissions from 19 councils who provided direct responsas lo the ICE
programme consultation questions. The balances of responses cover correspondence and detail which did nat
link difectly with the guestion template.

ICE PRINCIPLES AND DEVELOPMENT OF AN APPROPRIATE FRAMEWORK

e definiions orev| et I Secd

improvement, Collaboration and Efficiency are ap

which to develon the |CE Programme

All councils {19 out of 18) who submitied a direc mesponse to Ihe corsultahon gueston agresd that the
definitions for Improvement. Callaboration and Efficiency are approprista, with several commanting that these
are reflactve of good practice principles. The following addiffons? paints were also raisad!

«  Consderation should also be given to defiming ICE at three levels Le. organisationat, sectoral and
crass-secionl,

« Definition of ‘improvernent’ should be broadened 1o reflect the commitment to sustainatsility -
“sustainable improvements”

» Definition of ‘efficiency’ should refer o cash savings
¢ Definition of ‘callaboration’ should refer 1o the lzgality and governance of the processes and

partnerships that wiil form through ICE. The definition should also include a commitment to buikd
gapatity within the sector (o promate innovatian

o B - - 1 &~
1in Saction 1 AT T

1 10 @8 @ng SEnpoe] Impreh e

All councils {19 oul ol 19) who submitted a direct responsa to the consultation question broadly agreed that the
ICE Framework is an sppropriate mechanism io ald and suppart improvement, collaborabion and efficeency  The
flaxible, non-prescriptive nature of the framework and guidance, alang with the ICE Self Assessment Excellenca
Model were also welcomed,

A number of additicnal pmnts were raised, these are summansad balow.

s The diagrammalic [lustraton of the ICE Framework should be reviewed with the aim of producing a
diggram, which suggests less of a top-down approach

« A 'Plan” stage should be included in the Assess, Design, Operate and Review cycle.

» Considerstion should be given to a broader model, which addresses issuas of integration and alignment
of planning at sactoral and cross-sectoral levels.

» Reporting should not preclude Naxibie and innovative spproaches balng developed, individual councils
should decide on the contant and fom of reports and how often they should be published

« Fremework is process driven and may lack flexibility — concern thal it could lose its focus as a
cammunication 100l and become a bureaucratic process that will result in an audit driven framework

Page 9of 23



Page 24

& Further clanty reguired on how the ICE programmie will be aligned and integrated with athar kocal
government propositions:

» DDE= Service Delivery and Pedomance |[mprovement propaesition |
»  Future model far local government reform {wilh associated Council clusters), and
= Future timelines for iocal government raflorm

& Mare work requirsd in femms of training. gaining buy n and cresting 8 ssnee of ownership of the
framswork

an Bu=sness Planmming

Eightean aut of 19 councils{35%) who submitted a direct responss (o the consultation quesion indicated that
they would be prepared in principle to incorpofale the ICE Framework (of key slements of it) within theie
Covporate and Business Planning cycle  The remaining council, while welcoming the principles of improvement
and collaboraton, fall it was too early in 1he process 1o agree 1o this.

& number of addbonal msues were rasad, these are summansed below

=« DOE Service Delvery and Perormance improvement Framework and ICE Framewark are nol currantly
aligrad and there =& need for a single vision The alignmeni between the |CE approach (cnven byfor
Local Government) with Local Government as the kay driver of impravemant and the suggested DOE
approach (significant cversight by DOE) needs to be addressed in & final framework

« The combined ICE Framawork & separate DOE recommendatons could bacomea overly prescriptive &
regulatory

= |mportant that the ICE Programme does not 2eek to create a prescripbve process but rather be flexbie
gnough far Council’s to adopt te best fit their circdmstances.

& onumber of kay challenges relevant to the ICE Programme were raisad by councils, These are summarnsed
balow

# Economic climate, budgetary constraints and increasing citizen expectations

# |ncreasing ciizen expectafions of quslily, value for money services during a period of budgetary
canglrant and dwindling incame.

* Lower cusiomer disposabla income and pressures on local businesses potentizlly affecting Mon
Domestic rate revenus.

» Growing econcmic pressures for iocal government to find more efficient and effective ways of
defivenng integrated services

= Local Government Reform

F  Uncenginties over RPA and new council siruclures.

»= Potantal mposition of statuiory performance fargets and scrutiny rofe of cantral departiments.

»  Difficuity in redesigning kocal senvices due io fack of infarmation regarding the transfer of
functions, including associated tmings, siaf and cost,

# HRissues inclading hammonization of terms and condiions of employment

# Community Planning = incloding providing effeciive leadership, achigving & step change in the
degree of collaboration betwean key prayers in the public ang communidy sectors and creating a
mechaniam for deeper engagement betwean local people and councis.

Page 10 of 23



Page 25

Funding Reform | [CE Programme

# Fimancing of up-front costs
#  Funding for résources.

Managing Change

= Availably of / impact on résources

= Managing change at the local level = ranskating recommandations from the RGG inlo achon
when there is no mandatory reguirement to do 50

# Managing the potantial conflicts batwaen the drive for efficency and having enough money 1o
deliver Membars ambetions.

» Patentlal résisiance to change - g fragmented approgch to ICE across the sector will impect on
the potential cutcomes and benefits for paricipating councils

# Retaining front ine services whilst reaiising genuine and sustainable efficiency savings

# FRelaive scale of opportunity and benefil for somea counclls

# Meelng capacity building needs of members and officers

# The legaldy ol any proposed collaborative venlures, Including human resource and cantractual
and indemnity issues

F Reducing bureaucracy and delivering resulls

All eouncils (17 out of 17) who submitted a direct response to the consultabion guestion broadly agresd that a
baseline data set and appropriate performance indicators should be developed by the secior. Several councils

either highlighted that the absence of a robus! baseline data set had hindered the progress of
collaborative initiatives and joined up approaches to service delivery or highlightad that this was
essantial to the success of any sector wide improvemnent programma,

& number of addibonal points were raised, these ara summansad belows:

Perdarmance indicators should be imited 1o a ‘core sat’ of robus high level indicators. which are
balanced (not just financial in nature). These should be set within the wider context of community
panning and in devealoping Inlegrated sofutions 1o focal needs

Parformance indicalors should be developed and agreed by the sector as opposed to being imposed by
external egencies. The process shauld nat be overly bureaucrafic and individual councils should have
the flexibility to pul in place sdditionsl local indicators f required.

Formmulas for performance measures should ba consistent acress local government and resudtant
parformance figures should be validated by audit  One council suggested that intemal Audit could be
provided on & segional collaborative basis and this could be used as & maechanism tor verifying P1 data

Local and central govesnment should work together to develop and implemant a progressive approach
to performance and senvice improvemant including, for example, the creation of performance tools such
as pear review, sall assessment and benchmarking

As part of the process to develop a centralflocal government partnership approach, consideration
should be given o Ihe Introducfion of imited agreed KPis for central government departments

Pape 11 of 23



Page 26

s Furiher consideration of the potential linkege with the new local government parformance framework
proposed by DOE required

» One Council stressed that any perfarmance framework should be based on the foliowing principles

» Councils gre uiimatety accountable to their mlepayers for their perfommance.

# Counclis are responaible for their own performance and for leading on the delvery of seqvices
and improving oulcomes for the people they serve,

= A range of easessment methods including self-assessment. peer review and performance
Indicators should be usad.

# The burden of inspection, data collection and reparting 1o ba kept to & minimum

» The framework should provide value for money. be affordable. transparent and fair, eas:dy
urderstood and capable of implamentation

WORK PROGRAMME

ised ICE Waork Programme defpled ot Seciiod

iarting poant for consideration by the Reglomal Govermanc:

Mineteen councis submitted a direct responss o he consultation question. As astaring point for the Regonal
Governance Group, the proposed |CE work programme was broadly supported.  Onae council fall it was too
early in the process to agree until more independent evidence is produced on the veracity of indicative savings.

A rumber of poinks were raised by counclls, thess are suimmansed below!

» Given the forthcoming election, considerafion should be given o the inclusion of a back-up pasition
whereby the interm govemance arrangemants will continue 1o make progress in the event of & deiay 1o
Ihe establishment of ihe Regional Govemnance Group

# 5 detziled work programme should be developed priortising prosects; identifying limescales and
incorporating benefits managament

s The programme must dently and defver guick wing 1o motivate and encourage participaton

# The work programima should not negate the possbility of other viable propects beng put forward by
ingdividual councils

In addition 1 the poinis shove, one council made a number of specific comments against Key slements of tha
proposed work programme.  Thase will need to be faken inlo considesalion in the development of a more
detailad work programme,

Twa councils Aighlighted a number of specific issues, These are listad balow

Business cases need to clearly indicale sssociated costs

Detail is required regarding the method of developing the varous business cases
There is a nead to clarly how projects will be managed from inception to delivery
Muore detail on staff resources to underake the project work is reguired.

Page 12 of 23



Cther prajects noted by councils include:

s More emphasis on explonng frontline services, using the proposed Servies Delivesy and Improvement
process. Recogniion should be given to the different needs. priarities and levels of sarvice provision
throughout this work | 2. 8 ona-size-fits-all model is uplikely 1o apply

= Redesign of customer facing services in conjunction wath transferdng functions to ensure maximum
benefit to customer and realisation of potential efficiencies

= All gouncils are delivering community services and good relations projects on bahall of D50 - potental
to look al & colaboraltve approach

« Review potantial ooporlunities scross service areas which are already dellvered on a cluster basis, e Q
economic development, group sysiams

= Introduction of common systems across professional services, e g. environmendal health departments.
s Imlernal Audit and Vehicle Mairtenance. especially in collaboraton With other public bodies

# Furiher consderation of jont managemant ieams,

15 out of 17 councils who submitted a direct response to the consultation gquestion agresd that the enablers
Hstad in the 'Case for Change’ report are appropriate for the ICE Programme.  The remaining two councils
agreed with the exception of vacancy cantrod

One councd, while supporiing the enablers set out in the ‘Case for Change' report, sought further clarification as
to the anticipated sources for necessary up-front seed funding and resource to take forward the next phasa of
work to dewvelop detailed business cases.

One councll afso noted concerns about the viabiity of the ICE Programme if i 1s dependent upon the active
participation of all 26 counals. The council commeniad that whide this may be desirable, it might be difficult to
achieve in the shorter term. The souncll guened whether thera had been any thought given ta the minimum
participation required o give validity to the programma.

Additional enatiers suggested by councils include.

» Establishment of an appropriate fegicsal body to manage the |CE programme, busld consensus,
promote accountabliity and provide strategic and polilical leadership

« Active paricipation of ail 26 councils al palitical and managerial level

= Establishment of quantitative and qualitative benchmarks agalnst which achisvements and progress
can be meepsurad.

s  Clarity on future direction and timeframe for RPA or reform agenda
= |ntroduction of pilol oppariunbes

+  Legislative changes

Page13of 23



Page 28

« Sfrong leadesship from sanior management teams and poiitical leaders - some difficult decisions on
delivery models will have to be taken, People ane the key enablers in any change process: they must
be motivated and take awnership of the programme. A significant focus on driving cultural change is
required to enable this process fo succeed

# [efailed gnd specific 'Legal Advice' on confractual financial and HR implcations,

« Common approaches to HR issdes with particular refarance to areas such as stafl saverance

Wil are your viesws an submission of

3=l N0 EESDUITE TRGUrETIES TN

18 out af 19 counsils (95%) who submitted a respanse 1o the consuliston guestion Indicaled thewr genaral
suppor for 8 case tn be made 1o the Department of Environmant for further extension of resources to maintan
continulty of the ICE pregramme. Several councils siregs that this should be fallowed up as a matlar of urgancy
The remaining coundil indicated that it was too early in the process o commant

In response fo the question, several councils highlighted the importance for DOE to consider up-front suppodt for
councils al an eafly stage, both to build suppor within the sector and to demonsirale 8 genuine centraliocal
gowernment parinership approach. This support would reduce a= afficiency savings are deliveran

Several councils aten refarred o ihe facl that Change Management Officers and & number of seconded staff
within MILGA, including the Improvemant Team have been haaviy involved in developing the 1ICE programmia,
bringing the programme to its current posiion. They highlightad that the programmae needs to be made
operational, infegrated into councils business cycles and, in the longer tem, sustained and alignad with other
programme &nd reform elemenis. They raised concemns that i the existing resouroes are no longer available,
the programme could fail before it is properly stared. This paint can be cross referenced o4 7.2, 48 1, 4,101
and 4 10.2 above

Dine counce feghlightad that any long-arm decisions on stalfing musl be conbingent upon levels of paricipation
in tha programmie. |0 keaping wilh the concapt of sustanability, the pragramme should also aim o become sell-
financing within an agreed timeframe. Another council commanted fhat given the financial and budgstary
consirainis facing DOE, it would be important that any miterim case put forwerd clearly set out the scope and
purpase of any resources required. They suggested that due consideration is also given to the mobilisation of
resources from wilhin the local government secior fo-take this work forward with exisiing mechanisms providing
& central co-ordinating opporturnity,

Page 18 of 23



Page 29

GOVERNANCE

Al councils (17 aut of 17) whe submitted a direct response o the consultation question weare DROSGY Supparive
of the operabonal principles outlined in the consultation. There weare a number of additional issues highlighted.
These are saf ouf below.

s Ajthough the principle of equa representation is supparted it is recognised that one representative from
gach counc may result in minority paties not being represented. While any greatar than one
representative per council could make numbers unmanageable consideration should be given to
methods of providing political balance for axampla thorough councll naminations being made based on
D'Honct within each council

= \While initially meetings should be hald once every six weeks, in the longer-term, mestings should be
haeld in response Yo cntical paints in the delivery programme, rather than at regular intervals

» There is & requirement for ongaing review of the ICE governance arrangements in terms of the
outwarking of a 26 model arrangement and the transition to an 11 model should a date be agread for
fha rmplemeniation of the reform programme

There was no clear preferenca identified between the six options illustrated in the govemance consultation
although 7 Councils suggested NILGA as a host argan=sation for staff support with 8 more making the paint that
the cenlral administrative resource should be re-established but limited at the oulset and reviewed on an
ongoing basis Two councils were unabie to choose an oplion withoul knowing costs involved indeed three
councils who did subamit an option also askad that furlther information

wegal that thare shonld: b= 2 Himded numbss of miethads for ensarm

posais i the DUE Logal G

Thirteen out of fifteen councils who answered this guestion agreed that there should be a kmited number of
methods for ensuring sharing of postions of Chair and Deputy Char Other points highlighted include:

«  The default mechanism shauld ba O'Hongt
s Political Parties should respond 1o this issue

Page 15 of 23



Page 30

Wil your coumcil gve B cammiment (0 NEnate 2 represenisive o

Al councils (17 out of 17) who submitted a direct response to fhe consultation question commiied. in principle,
1o nomirate a representative to the Regional Governance Group. Othar issues highlighted include:

= Mominations should be posipened unfil the establishmeant of the new Council term
= Furiher clarfication is requirad on potentizl resource implications for councils ol particpation

& Addifioral infarmation 15 needed on the Regioral Ghief Exscutives Regional Elected Members. Group.

INVEST TO SAVE BUSINESS MODEL

ad by couficlls to eliher retduce ha rsles bill ©

gocated by the "invest to Save' Business Modal

Al councils {15 out of 19) who submitied a direct response to the consullation question agreed with Lhe
princeples of the Invest to Save’ Business modsl, with the majority (88%) reiterating that the ublisation of
efficiencies should be a matier for indvidual councile. Several also commented that 1 would be impanant for
councils to have the coportunity to use efficiencies fo lever'draw down additional funding to take forward
impiovement poojects.

One councd cutiined that effioencies need (o be ceany defined. ceptured and usad in the coptaxt of tha
fimancial planning of each local authority o rmest locally delermined pricaties. They ingicalad that It would be
impartant o recogniss and reconcile the tensions that exst betwesen use of efficiencees to fund local prionties
and the funding of local gavernmaenl reform

Under whal cuceenst

ot of the 18 councils who submifted a direct responze to the consultabon question, 2(47%) iIndcaled that
whilg the ICE programme itself is & part of reform, i would not b2 appropnate 1o use efficiencias delversd
through the ICE programme ta fund cantral govemment proposed RPA Inibiatives.

Saveral highlighted that if there are any indications that the benalits of the ICE programmea will be used o fund
the reform process rathar fhan being used at a local level, that this will lead to a lack of support, adversaly
sffecting the commitmient snd participafion of councils

Cine councl outlined & set of high level prncipies which it proposed shouwld be applied 1o funding refomm, whie a
furiner & counces (32%]) meiteratad their sepport for he principies agread by Local Government in Fesaruany 2010
{see Appendix B)

¥ tha 3 remaining councils who submitted 2 response, 1 indicated that it would be dependant an 8 businass
case, 1 on the payback period, whila the remaining council indicated it was too early o say but suggested that
mionies could possibly be used to pilat the community planning proposals for each council area,

Page 16 of 23



Page 31

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REFORM

pormcle |||:_i ~C P TETTr

The impartance of a p.ﬁ.rtner'shiﬁ approach between central and local governmant in which the role and
responsibilites of both levels of government |5 clearly set out and mutually respected was highlighted by several
councilts. Several also commented that itis impoartant that the ICE programme (s aligned 1o the wider refom
programme and that considerafion is given o a new and canstructive relationship In which real progress on
transfer of functions and the associated implementation issues can take place

It was sirggested that the Regional Governance Group (RGG) could act as a forum and conduit for the transfer
of functions (Inc releted funding, resources eic) and mare generally aid cofiaboration with end between local and
central governmeant with a foous on place and improved outcomes for citizens

it was noted (hat the proposed parneship panels slso have an impordant role In improving relationships ano
that NILG3A's role shoubd not be dirmnished by the ICE Programme, To avoid duplication, the need for clear
definitlons of responsibility was highlighted

Five councils did nol comment or considered the question to be premature at this stage without further clarify
and detail

Page 17 of 23



Page 32

Appendix B

Funding principles agreed by Local Government in February 2010

The raform process should be cost neutral to the ratepayer as promised al the outset of the reform
process and thal any rate nses o the ratepayer must be avaidged

Whara there is no financial benefit 1o local government, costs should be mel by Central Govermment,

Caouncils may centribute where benefits will be sccrued. Coninbulion should be sgporticned based on
the lavel of banafil gasnad

Cantral Government should fund acivilies whene sguity across the sector s required (e.g. Elecled
Member and Officer Severance Schemes).

The final programme ocsts and the apportionment must be negotisted based on & robust and mutually
sgreed business case

The final programme costs must be affordable:

Repaymant of any oans from central gavermment 1o local government should only be congidered when
councils have made demonsitable savings.

Funding principles agreed by Belfast City Council Strategic Policy and Resources
Committes in March 2010

In response to the consultaton question. Belfast City Council noted that given the current finarcial and
budgetary constraints facing the NI Executive, the Council accepts that it is ikely that local government will be
axpicted 1o bear some of the costs of the local government reform programme.

The Council Strategic Policy and Resources Committes, at its meeting on 19th March 2010, endorsed the
following high level principies which 1| proposed should be aoplied o Tunding refoem

any financial contribution made by the Councll would be proportionate to the costs incurred by the
Cauncil in mplemanting the relorm programme,

any financal commitment to the efficiency programme for local government will only be made on the
bass of YFM being demonstrated for Belfast ralepayers

Ihe Belfast ratepayes should not be asked o subsidise the convergence costs of othar councl areas,
and

tranaferring funchions should be rates neutral at pomt of transfer to councls.

Page 18-of 23



Page 33

Appendix C

Other Consultation Responsas

Building Control NI

Building Controd NI (BCNI) provided a response o the ICE Programme consultalion guestons. Kay points in
their response are summarised balow:

ICE Principles and Development of Appropriate Framework

BCNI agres with the definitions for improvement, Coliaboration and Efficlency

ICE Framawork: While welcoming the 'Case for Change', BCHI have serious reseryalions about some

of the framewarks and council made! referred o, They befiave that ather Nl councll models
damaonsirate better collaboretive efficiencies and should ba worthy of consideratbon

As one of @ number of services provided by district councils and groups, if Ingy are to be reviewed, it
should be done &5 an integrated service appraisal across all 26 councils and five groups

BCNI agree that looa! government should develop & baseline data gal and appropriate key performance
indicators.  They stale that thare should only be-a core st of indicators, enabling councis 13 put In
place local indicators f requered. There must alsa be consistency and agreement across local
government in formutating baseline data and performance indicalors

ICE Work Programme

BCNI stale that ICE shauld not take away from existing modeis that are working wadl

BCHN| believe thal an agreed business modet which is visionary and ambstious will defiver @l of the

penefits of the ICE documant far a citizen cantrad senvice and would welooma the opporiunily o
discuss such a proposal al the earlies! convenience based on the current developments within BCNI

BCNI state that funding is essential to the success of the programme in order 1o move forward to the
next stage otherwise the programme could fail before it is properly started.

Governance

BCMI comment that the regional governance framework looks well on paper but that it will depend upon
buy in from councils  They state that the siructure will anly work if everyone supparts it. The ICE
framework is, at presen!, aspiration, not based on wide evidence of Councils willingly collaborating
across 8 range of senvices uniess there is some imperative for the individual Councils to do so. Thay
siate that as the ICE Programme Implementation proceeds it may be lound thal the PwC BS0 model
rmay need to be re-visited as it appears more robust

Invest to Save' Business Model

BCMI state that this area requires a lot more consideration and clarification. In relation to Building
Contrad, they state that consideration should be given to evafuating the lessons from England and
Wales in terms of quality of servica elc_ [or lack of). This could be further expiored by BCNI and
presanted to NILGA/ SOLACE as an altemative point of view, taking into sccount the privatelpublic
sarvice model

Fage 19 of 23



Page 34

Local Government Refarm

BCHI currantly believe that the democratic § accountable system of sarvice delivery within Northarn
|retand quite cleary demonstrates key prme examples of first class colisboraton, improvemant and
efficiency measures which are required to deliver value for money services and further believe that
these frameworks can be anhanced o accelerate the needs of any new ICE requiraments. Thay stale
that BOH| model outcomes could be classified as:

supporiing the evolution of new farms of service delivary and |oint working between central and
local government which daliver vales formansy
the provision of an infegrated, efficient and responsne public service which meets the needs af
the citizen

« coordingtion that delivered consistency of local desision making within political governanca

= it has maximised the potential benefits and synergies of collaboration

- and has clearly demonstraled joined ug govemment in achion

Page 200f 23



Page 35

NIPSA

NIPSA submitted a consultation response structured around key sections of the ‘Case for Change' report. The
key paints and ssues ralsed by NIPSA are summarnsad below

Concamed about the consultetion process, in particular the timaline.

Considers ICE to be inextricatly linked to the RPA process and hence all negobations should fall within
the remit of the LGRJF

Considers there is & need for full engagement. negaotiation and consultation with trade unions on every
aspect of the ICE programmie. In this regard, NIPSA state that the LGRJF must be central to the
engagemant process between councils and trade unions

Rejects the concept of ‘efficiency” as this is pradicated on the ethas of cost cutting alone, Itis NIPSA's
vaw that the cormect approach to public service delivery should be based an ‘effectiveness of defvery’,

In considering ‘local needs' there is a need to factor in the M3 local economic multiphier effect, which
demonstrales for every £1 apent by local government, it hasa growth impact of 1.6

Concermed about the reference to partnership working with the voluntary sactor as they feel there is &
clear move to pass public service work 1o the voluntary sector and hence provide public services on the
cheap

In respect of ‘spend lo save’ NIPSA commented that this is often the euphemism for severance costs.
HIPSA has concans on this. In particular, MIPSA highlight that f there is to be a voluniary scheme
ihese will need to be a common schema with agreed standard application provisions.

In relation to performance indicators, NIPSA state that this raises numerous issues of concem, Theay
commented that it was unhelpful thal the ICE Programme 'Case for Change makes no reference 1o the
inlarface with the DOE policy propasals consullation, which also raises considerable mattars of detail as
to parformance indicators

Require full information as to the curent debt lavels of all 26 councils.

Highlighted the need to provide & revised up-to-date HR Strategy for local govemment, especially given
the need to accommodats the merging of cultures batween local government and the mainly civil
service transferees. They commented that some of the proposais can be welcomed such as the move
te joint recruitment and retum to fraws. Of all of the issues, NIPSA staled that this is the most
fundamantal iasue for negobatons

Pape 21 of 23



Page 36

Local ff Commission for Northern Irel

In response to the consultatan, the LGSC and the Local Government Training Group (LGTG) stated that they
look forward to continuing o suppor councils to deliver on the necassary changas highlighted in the |CE ‘Casa
for Changs'

A =mall number of genaral comments werne made, (hese are ghbghted below

« The LGSC hightighted that @ number of the opportunities detailed in section 11.2.3 and Appandix F -
Human Resources will require changes 10 procedures and policies which are currently the subject of
either specific statutory recommendations of the Commission (e, provisons of the Commission’s Cods
af Procedures an Recrutment & Setechion) or are within the Commission's slatufory remit and can
therefore only be changed with the agreement and input of the Commission

= A number of ihe opporiunities idantified in the ‘Case for Change' will be bes{ delivered on a regional
basis and will require a central point for co-ordination of information and activity  LGSC stated ihat i
tnedr bebed that the Commission and LGTG already represent well established and respected shared,
prafessicnal resources whera needs are eslableshed and mel In pannership with client/customers in the
local governmant family on a professional and value formonsy basis

Page 22 of 23



Page 37

DOE

The Departmant of Environmant (O0E) provided an assesament of the ICE consultation report's compathbility
with the wider local govemman refarm programme, They identified the following key issues regarding the
overall trgiectory of the ICE programme:

= |t is not the anticipated overarching business case the Minister was expecling (see& the |CE Warking
Group TOR, Annex C)

» Itbs not an altemative o the PrcewstarmousaCaspers {PwC) Business Services Organisation as the
majonty of proposed savings are from cusiomer-facing sernvices;

« [t % not comparable fo the PwC economic appraisal as it does nol cover local government servige
dalvery inits enliraty,

* |t does not take into account the guidance previously given by the Minister and restated in a |etter dated
14 December 2010 That the thrust has congisfently been fowards local goverriment taking fonward its
efficiency and collabovation agenda but in the context of the Executive's focal governmarn! refam
programme . o

& [hereis no indicaton of the lotal upfront cost of the programme.

Papge 23 of 13



Page 38



Page 39

m

rovement, Gollaboration &

LR ]

19" September 2011

IMPROVEMENT COLLABORATION AND EFFICIENCY (ICE) PROGRAMME
Dear Council Mayors, Chairs and Chief Executives,

As President of the Local Government Association (NILGA) and Chair of SOLACE we are writing to
update you on the progress of the ICE Programme and to seek your council’'s nominations for the
Regional Governance Group (RGG — see Appendix A).

As you may recall, we recently wrote to you enclosing a copy of the Improvement, Collaboration and
Efficiency (ICE) Consultation Final Report. This detailed the principal areas of feedback received on
the recent ICE ‘Case for Change’ and Regional Governance Consultation together with options for
moving forward.

In that letter we informed you that NILGA and SOLACE would soon be meeting with the Minister of
the Environment, Mr Alex Attwood MLA, to hear his opinion on proposals for the wider local
government reform programme. We would then be in a position to consider the relationship between
the ICE programme and wider local government reform programme, should the outstanding issues in
respect to RPA be resolved by the NI Executive.

We confirm that a delegation from NILGA and SOLACE held an inaugural meeting with Minister
Attwood on Thursday 21st July 2011 to discuss the future of Local Government Reform. A
presentation was also delivered on the ICE programme.

This was a positive and productive first meeting, yet it is clear that the Minister is unable to provide
the necessary clarity sought on the wider local government reform programme. He is however
supportive of the ICE programme and is keen that we progress to the next phase in its development
and implementation.

Based on the ICE programme consultation responses, it is clear that local government believes that
‘Do Nothing’ is not an option. We are therefore recommending that we proceed with option 3 outlined
in the ICE Consultation Final Report, to proceed with the establishment of the Regional Governance
Group (RGG) and implement the ICE Programme (with alignment to the reform programme when
direction is agreed). This will ensure that the momentum and knowledge generated to date is not lost.

ICE represents a distinct programme of work and any determination to develop further action relating
to wider modernisation and reform issues affecting local government will require new thinking and
distinct delivery models. Councils should note that the RGG will not be a decision making body — all
decisions will be taken by Councils themselves.



Page 40

What are you being asked to do?
Nomination to Regional Governance Group and its Operation

You are asked to nominate one elected representative and one substitute member from your council
to the Regional Governance Group.

It will be for each individual council to decide the best method for nominating its representative, with
the understanding that each member shall be representing his or her council on the development of
strategic policy in relation to the ICE programme. Councils are responsible for selecting those
nominees who will best serve the knowledge, enthusiasm and capacity required to represent council
and to support the RGG’s determination of the strategic policy objectives and priorities for the ICE
Programme.

Attached in Appendix A is an overview of the RGG, its membership and operation. It also
incorporates comments and suggestions made by consultees during the recent ICE programme
regional governance consultation.

We would welcome your council’s nominations in writing. Please send this by Tuesday 2™
November 2011 via email to ICE@nilga.org. Alternatively, you can write to us at the address below.

ICE Programme
NILGA
Unit 5b Castlereagh Business Park
478 Castlereagh Road
Belfast
BT5 6BQ

The first meeting of the RGG is expected to be held during November 2011 and notification will follow.

We believe that amidst the ongoing uncertainty around the Local Government Reform Programme
and an increasingly challenging economic climate, the ICE Programme provides the sector with a
viable opportunity to deliver better outcomes for citizens and ratepayers. It provides a clear direction,
the opportunity for strong leadership for the sector as well as good governance and engagement at a
regional level with flexibility to drive collaborative improvement projects at regional, sub-regional and
local levels.

We look forward to receiving your nominations and working with you as we lead the journey towards
excellence.

Yours sincerely

W Iy E o I 7 AE ]
i AT N oA T e R

Clir Evelyne L Robinson Ashley Boreland
President Chair of SOLACE
September 2011



Page 41

Regional Governance Group (RGG)

Appendix A

Councils were first consulted on proposals for regional governance arrangements to support the ICE

programme back in August 2010.
principles.

Council views were also sought on high-level operational

The majority of councils chose, as their preferred governance model, the inclusive regional option,
which included representation from each of the 26 councils. This became known as the Regional
Governance Group (RGG) although it is referred to in the diagram below as the Regional
Collaboration Group.

An illustrative diagram of the RGG is attached below. This preferred model recognises that the 26
councils are the only bodies with statutory powers to effect decisions related to ICE.

Regional

Regional oversight
& communication

Regional & sub- Regional

Local projects and
accountability

government

management

regional projects

Regional government/DOE

Regional Governance

Group*

Regional Chief
Executives Group*

Collaborative projects — regional and sub-

regional*

1

Councils

*supported by ICE secretariat

Indicative Role

RGG— Comprised of elected members from
each Council. Role to include proposing
general direction of travel, establishment
and sharing of best practice, oversight of
progress,

NILGA — communication of best practice,

€ icating progress to stakehold:
including DOE, liaising with DOE re policy,
championing local government.

RCEG — Comprised of Chief Executives —
number to be determined. Role to include
co-ordination of regional programmes and
projects, advising RGG and provision of joint
secretariat.

Collab fwe projects— I and sub-
regional— includes investigating options for
collaboration, co-ordination of regional
programmes and projects, seeking approval
through Councils, up<dating NILGA etc.
Project teams to include representation
from professional groups e.g. SOLACE,
finance, IT, CMOs etc as required, in
additional to external stakeholders in public,
private, voluntary and community sectors as
required. Bxample projects include
procurement, IT, transferring functions etc.

Councils — to include local programme and
project boards, scrutiny role, identification of
preferred strategic partners, identification of
areas of efficiency, improvement and
collaboration, provision of single points of
contactwhere required. Will support
working with existing Transition Committees
on joint committee basis where there is local
need.




Page 42

Role of the RGG

Members of the RGG shall determine the strategic policy objectives and priorities for the ICE
Programme and will focus on guiding and enabling the programme. RGG members will not have a
role in the operational delivery of projects, as this will be for participating councils to provide.

The role of the RGG is to:

e Support the local government sector in identifying and delivering opportunities for
improvement, collaboration and efficiency.

e Agree and maintain a shared vision and strategy for the development of improvement and
collaboration.

e Consider opportunities for collaboration and make recommendations as appropriate to
councils.

e Co-ordinate the effective scrutiny and monitoring of the specified collaborative projects.

e Ensure progress reports are provided to the participating councils at intervals specified by
them.

¢ Provide feedback to and from participant councils.

e Develop and share best practice.

When the RGG is established, there shall be no delegation of functions from councils to
the group. While the RGG may make recommendations on collaborative opportunities, as
the bodies with statutory responsibility, it shall be for individual councils to decide whether
they wish to participate. If required in the future, other limited functions may be delegated
from participating councils to the RGG to achieve economies of scale, promote savings
and minimise costs. This shall be subject to the agreement of all participant councils.

Membership of the RGG
While membership is voluntary, it is assumed that all 26 councils will be part of the RGG.

Membership of the RGG will be for one named member from each of the participating councils
(with each council also asked to nominate a substitute member).

The importance of political reputation / balance is recognised, as is the need for a ‘fit for
purpose’ and manageable governance structure. In order to maximise representation on the
RGG, the five NILGA office bearers will also be members.

Chair/Deputy

The RGG shall annually elect a Chair and Deputy Chair from within existing membership. The
method of allocating these positions will be agreed by the RGG.



Page 43

Membership of the RCEG (Regional Chief Executives’ Group)

In the short to medium term it is proposed that the SOLACE Executive, working through the ICE
Programme Management Group, shall undertake this role. Meetings will also be attended by the
NILGA Chief Executive. Progress reports will be presented to SOLACE Branch and NILGA
Executive/ working group meetings and feedback from these meetings will be fed back to the RGG for
further development.

Resources to support the ICE Programme and RGG

During the ICE consultation, continued resources to support the ICE Programme were highlighted as
a key issue for most consultees. The ICE programme was developed and supported using resources
previously tasked with progressing transition and transformation under RPA. This primarily related to
Change Managers and key, dedicated seconded staff within NILGA, including a small Performance
Improvement Team.

DOE funding ended for a number of these posts in March 2011 and while a degree of momentum has
been sustained and non council investment is being sought by NILGA', future sustainability of
resource remains a key issue. The RGG once operational, will need to give consideration to the
longer term issue of resources to support the programme.

At the outset it is proposed that meetings of the RGG will be hosted on a rotational basis by member
councils.
Secretariat support for RGG

Pending consideration and agreement of the arrangements for support resources, it has been agreed
that, in the short term, NILGA will provide secretariat support from within its existing resources and
through non Council investment supplementing this to enable the RGG to operate’. This will include:

Q

) Arranging meetings

) Taking minutes

) Administrative support
)

)

o O T

Venue hire
Coordination with external stakeholders
) Communication of decisions

=2 O

It has been suggested that this arrangement is supported through liaison with the host council for
each meeting of the RGG.

1 - We are informed by DoE that such funding is available to NILGA subject to finalisation of clear business and performance
objectives.

Cost

In the immediate future, it is anticipated that the only costs to be met by member councils will be
expenses relating to their RGG member and, if appropriate, RCEG member and costs associated with
hosting meetings (to be rotated across member councils). Following consideration of the issue of
resources by the RGG, member councils will be consulted on any potential additional costs which
shall be recovered from councils and / or external sources and shall be estimated in advance where
possible by reference to a business case.?

2 — Councils are reminded that the secretariat role by NILGA is covered by Council subscriptions.



Page 44

Expenses

Relevant expenses shall be paid to members by their sponsoring councils.

Operating Principles for the RGG

Standards and Conduct
All members and officers of the RGG shall exercise leadership by behaving in ways that exemplify
high standards of conduct and effective governance.

Capacity Building
The RGG will commit itself to developing its member’s skills, so they can carry out their roles
effectively.

Location of Meetings
Initially the RGG will be hosted by each of the participating councils on a rotational basis.

Attending Meetings

Members shall attend as many meetings as practicable and be actively involved in decision making
so the RGG can work effectively and consistently. This includes informing oneself, preparing for
discussions, engaging, and maintaining links with the members of the parent council. It may also
include engaging willingly and actively with the public, service users and staff, within an agreed
communication framework.

Length of Service
Participating Councils are responsible for the period of time which representatives may be nominated
for, and it should be understood that this may be up to four years.

Appointing Substitutes

It is recommended that Councils formally appoint a substitute member. In the event that the council’s
nominated member of the RGG is unable to attend a meeting, the substitute member should attend
on his/her behalf.

The substitute member shall have the duties of any nominated member of the committee. If the
absent member is the Chair of the RGG, the Deputy Chair shall chair the meeting. If both the Chair
and the Deputy Chair of the council are absent from a meeting of the RGG, such councillor as the
councillors present may choose, shall preside.

The nominated member is responsible for ensuring that their substitute is briefed in the business of
the meeting.

Resignations
Resignation from the RGG should be effected by delivery of at least one-month’s notice in writing to
the Chair of the RGG. The relevant council will be asked to appoint a replacement.

In the event the Chair resigns from the RGG or from the position of Chair during the term of office, the
Chair shall be replaced for the remaining term by a member of the RGG from the same Party.



Page 45

Quorum
The RGG will be considered quorate for the purpose of decision-making when a minimum of one-
quarter of the participating membership is present.

Count out

Upon the attention of the Chair being called by a Member or duly appointed officer to the fact that
there is not a quorum present, the Chair shall declare the meeting of the RGG at an end, and the
names of those who are present shall be recorded on the minutes of the RGG.

Decision-making and Accountability

All members shall have equal status and collective responsibility for decisions. Normally decisions will
be determined by consensus. Though having people with different points of view may lead to some
conflict this is natural and may lead to more creative thinking. If issues cannot be resolved there will
be a show of hands. If there is a tie the Chair may have a second or casting vote.

The RGG working within a framework of collaboration, mutual trust and co-operation, shall always
operate inclusively of its participant councils. It is not the responsibility of members to decide whether
their council will participate in any collaborative or other opportunity. Individual councils will decide
whether they wish to avail of collaborative opportunities.

Transparency & Reporting

The work of the RGG shall be open and transparent to member councils and interested parties.
Decisions, recommendations, declarations of interest, and reservations will be recorded in the
minutes of meetings.

Where practicable, meetings will be open to interested parties. Councillors who are not members shall
have the right to attend meetings but will not have voting rights. Speaking rights will be determined by
the Chair of the RGG. Issues such as cost of overheads, etc. shall be determined by the sponsoring
council. A copy of the operational principles shall be circulated to every member of the constituent
councils in the group.

Work Programme

A work programme shall be agreed by members of the RGG, working in collaboration with the Chief
Executives on the RGG. The aim will be for the RGG to reach a consensus on issues for inclusion in
its work programme. The RGG work programme shall be made available to councils.

Agendas
The Chair and Deputy Chair of the RGG in conjunction with the Secretariat shall determine the
agenda for meetings.

Documents relating to the business shall normally be made available to members at least five working
days before the meeting to which they relate.

Minutes

In conjunction with the host council, the NILGA secretariat will co-ordinate the collation and
distribution of minutes of each meeting of the RGG, or where appropriate sub-committee. The RGG
shall agree the nature and style of the minutes to be recorded. In the absence of agreement on the
nature of the minutes, the minutes shall as a minimum record the significant aspects of the discussion
on the relevant agenda item, and any decision(s) taken by the RGG or sub-committee together with
the names of proposers and seconders.



Page 46

Reports
Reports shall be prepared in a way that enables effective decision-making. Reports shall be circulated
with the relevant notice or at least five working days prior to meetings.

Frequency of meetings

The RGG shall determine how often it should meet. It is anticipated that the group shall meet at least
once every six weeks initially but in the longer-term; meetings may be held in response to critical
points in the delivery of the programme, rather than at regular intervals.

Sub Groups and Working groups

The RGG can appoint sub-groups or working groups, if necessary. These bodies shall be required to
make recommendations to the RGG. Sub groups and working groups shall have written terms of
reference approved by the RGG that cover:-

¢ |ts objectives
e lis circle of competence
¢ Reporting requirements

e Membership

The RGG shall review subgroups and working groups once a year to decide whether they are still
required.

Evaluation and Review

The RGG structure, membership and terms of reference will be reviewed after the first year of
operation and every two years thereafter. This process will be led jointly by NILGA and SOLACE. The
results will be circulated for consideration by participating councils.

Terminating the Group
The RGG may be terminated at any time by agreement of all the participant councils.



Page 47 Agenda ltem 4a

Belfast City Council
Report to: Strategic Policy and Resources Committee
Subject: Appointments to Belfast Education & Library Board
Date: 7" October, 2011

Reporting Officer: Stephen McCrory, Democratic Services Manager (ext 6314)

1 Relevant Background Information

1.1 | At the meeting on 19" August, the Committee agreed to employ a one-off
d’Hondt process for the nomination of eight Members to fill the four places on the
Belfast Education and Library Board. This resulted in three Sinn Fein
nominations, three DUP nominations and one nomination each from the SDLP
and Alliance.

1.2 | The Committee agreed also to advise the Department of Education that the
application of the Council’'s system of proportionality would provide for the first
four of those eight choices being two Sinn Fein representatives (choices 1 and
3), one DUP representative (choice 2) and one SDLP representative (choice 4).

2 Key Issues

2.1 | The names of the Members to be nominated have been sought through the Party
Leaders on the Council and, to date, six names have been received. However,
the Democratic Unionist Party, which was entitled to nominate three of its
Members, has indicated that it is prepared to nominate only one Member as it
maintains that the Minister should appoint that Member in line with the Council’s
system of proportionality on the appointment of Members to Outside Bodies.

2.2 | This position is consistent with the one adopted by the Democratic Unionist Party
in November, 2010 when the Council was considering the nomination of
Members for consideration for appointment to the Interim Belfast Education and
Library Board. At that time, the Department of Education insisted that the
Council submit the names of eight candidates in order for it to meet its
obligations under the process agreed with the Commissioner for Public




Page 48

2.3

Appointments and the Committee agreed in November to allocate the remaining
two places to the Parties who had the next two choices under the d’Hondt table.

If the same process is applied in these circumstances, then the remaining two
choices would fall to Sinn Fein (choice 9) and SDLP (choice 10).

Resource Implications

None.

Equality and Good Relations Implications

41

None. The identification of those Parties entitled to nominate Members for
consideration for appointment is based upon the Council’s accepted system of
proportionality.

Recommendations

5.1

52

Given that the Democratic Unionist Party has decided to nominate only one
Member for consideration for appointment to the Board, the Committee is
recommended to allocate the remaining two nominations to the Parties holding
the next two places on the d’Hondt table. That is, Sinn Fein (choice 9) and SDLP
(choice 10).

In order to be consistent with the approach taken when considering
appointments to the Interim Belfast Education and Library Board in 2009 and
those to the Belfast Harbour Commissioners in June, 2011, the Committee is
recommended to advise the Department of Education that the application of the
Council’'s system of proportionality would provide for the first four of the eight
choices being two Sinn Fein representatives (choices 1 and 3), one DUP
representative (choice 2) and one SDLP representative (choice 4).

6

| Decision Tracking

Stephen McCrory, Democratic Services Manager

2" November, 2011




Page 49 Agenda ltem 5a

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of the Council’s Policy on the
Publication of Committee Reports on the Internet.

Document is Restricted



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Belfast City Council

Agenda ltem 6a

Report to:
Subject:

Date:

Reporting Officer:

Contact Officer:

Strategic Policy and Resources Committee

Standing Order 55 — Employment of Relatives

7 October 2011

Jill Minne, Head of Human Resources, ext 3220

Ronan Cregan, (Director of Finance and Resources, ext 6083)

Relevant Background Information

To inform the Committee of delegated authority exercised by the Director of Finance and
Resources to the employment of individuals who are related to existing officers of the

Council.

The Director of Finance and Resources has authorised the appointment of the following
individuals who are related to existing officers of the Council in accordance with the
authority delegated to him by the Policy and Resources (Personnel) Sub-Committee on 27
June, 2005. The Committee is asked to note the appointment is authorised by the

Director under Standing Order 55.

NAME OF POST RELATIONSHIP TO NAME OF DEPARTMENT
NEW APPOINTED | EXISTING OFFICER EXISTING
EMPLOYEE TO OFFICER
Rufina P/T Cleaner Wife Thomas Property &
McCormick McCormick Projects
Mother Wayne Development
McCormick
Jacqueline P/T Cleaner Partner Nathan Phillips | Development
O’Neill




Page 52

Resource Implications

Financial
Provision for this post exists within the revenue budgets of the relevant departments.

Human Resources

There are no Human Resource considerations. All appointments have been made on the
basis of merit in accordance with the Council’s Recruitment Policies.

Asset and Other Implications

There are no other implications.

Recommendations

Committee is asked to note the appointments authorised by the Director of Finance and
Resources in accordance with Standing Order 55.

Key to Abbreviations

Documents Attached




	Agenda
	2a Future Work Plan
	Appendix 1 - Flowchart Engagement - Oct to Dec

	3a Improvement, Collaboration and Efficiency Programme - Update
	Appendix 1 - Executive Summary
	Appendix 2 - Consultation Report
	Appendix 3 - Regional Governance Group

	4a Appointments to Belfast Education and Library Board
	5a Tender for the Provision of a Banking Service
	6a Standing Order 55 - Employment of Relatives

